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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Antioch Church, built ca. 1835, is a simple meeting house style church. Constructed
of clapboard, it rests upon low brick foundations and has a hipped roof covered by
pressed tin. The front (west) facade features double six-paneled doors with a five-
paned transom, flanked by a window on each side. The right side facade has a single
six-paneled door with a four-paned transom. This door is flanked by one window to the
right and two on the left. The rear (east) facade reveals the only major alteration
to the structure: in the 1930s two doors were cut from the two original windows to
provide passage to Sunday School rooms. These rooms have since been torn down and the
doorways covered with siding.

A11 windows are 9/9 with louvered shutters, and plain moldings surround both doors and
windows. The cornice is boxed. Brick steps have been constructed, replacing the
original wooden steps.

The simplicity of the design is carried out in the interior. The walls are plaster, and
the original pews of hand-hewn pine remain intact.

In 1976 the church was renovated by the South Carolina Disciples of Christ. The
interior, however, was not included in the repairs and presently needs to be restored.

SURROUNDINGS: Antioch Church is located in rural Allendale County. Included within
the nominated acreage is a graveyard where many of Allendale's old families are buried.

NOTE: The photographs enclosed with this nomination were made in January 1975. Since
then the church has been painted and maintenance considerably improved.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Antioch Christian Church, built ca. 1835, was the second Disciples of Christ Church in
South Carolina. Today, according to the South Carolina Disciples, it is the oldest
standing structure of that faith in the state and has been referred to as the "Mother
Church." Antioch is also significant as an excellent example of the meeting house style
of church architecture.

The founding of Antioch Church was chronicled in 1904 in the Churches of Christ by John T.
Brown. This account was written by J. D. Erwin, son of one of the founders of Antioch,
and a religious leader in his own right. According to Erwin:

Among the first to espouse the cause of pure Bible Christianity in the state
of South Carolina was Dr. W. R. Erwin, a deacon in the Kirkland church
[Smyrna Baptist Church, National Register of Historic Places, 19761 in the
lower part of Barnwell county. After long opposition he requested, at a
meeting of the church, May 4, 1833, a letter of dismission. On the 6th of
July he and Mrs. Rachel Robert were excommunicated, on the charge of heresy.
Soon after Mrs. Julia Erwin gave notice of her withdrawal, and she was also
excommunicated. In the latter part of 1833, the three above united as a
church. In 1835 they completed and set apart a neat meeting house (grounds
donated by Gen. James D. Erwin) on the outskirts of Erwinton, and called
the place Antioch, from Acts 11:26. The building still stands and is in
good repair.l :

As Erwin records, Antioch was on the outskirts of the community of Erwinton. In 1847 J. J.
Trott, an evangelist, visited the area and reported:

Erwington [sic]l is a most delightful place. It is not a city nor a town,
but--something much more interesting--a Christian neighborhood, composed of
a postoffice [sic]l, a male and female Academy, a neat and comfortable meet-
ing house, and a congregation of Disciples.?

(continued)

1John T. Brown, Churches of Christ (Louisville, Kentucky: John P. Morton and
Company, 1904),pp. 279-280.

2Char]_es Crossfield Ware, South Carolina Disciples of Christ, A History (Charles-
ton: Cbr1st1an Churches of South Carolina, 1967), p. 38, as quoted from lelbert Fanning,
The Christian Review, Franklin College, Tenn.; Vol. 4, No. 4, April 1847, p. 135.
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Although the church has not been used since 1939, there is considerable interest in its
preservation. In the 1960s, a South Carolina Historical Marker was erected; and most
recently, in 1976, the exterior of the church was restored by the South Carolina
Disciples of Christ. Services are now to be held there annually on the Sunday after

Easter.

ARCHITECTURE: Antioch Church is an excellent example of the meeting house style of
church architecture. Although simple in design, it is a well-proportioned structure
with paneled doors, transoms, and a hipped roof with boxed cornice.
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